
HIDEOUT, UTAH TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
June 13, 2024 

Agenda 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Town Council of Hideout, Utah will hold its Regular Meeting and Public 

Hearings electronically and in-person at Hideout Town Hall, located at 10860 N. Hideout Trail, Hideout Utah, for the 

purposes and at the times as described below on Thursday, June 13, 2024. 

All public meetings are available via ZOOM conference call and YouTube Live.  

Interested parties may join by dialing in as follows: 

Zoom Meeting URL:      https://zoom.us/j/4356594739 

To join by telephone dial:      US: +1 408 638 0986 Meeting ID:   435 659 4739 

YouTube Live Channel:      https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCKdWnJad-WwvcAK75QjRb1w/ 

 

    

Regular Meeting and Public Hearings 
6:00 PM  
 

I. Call to Order  

II. Roll Call 

III. Approval of Council Minutes 

1. April 11, 2024 Town Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

IV. Follow up of Items from Approved Minutes 

V. Public Hearing Items: 

1. Discussion and possible approval of the amendments to the Town Budget for the Fiscal 

Year 2023-2024 

2. Discussion and possible approval of an amendment to lot R-3 of Hideout Canyon Phase 8 

(parcel number 00-0020-8717) to relocate the twenty foot (20’) wide limited common 

area for the driveway 

3. Discussion and possible approval for amendments to Hideout Municipal Code Chapter 

10.08, including, but not limited to, placement of hot tubs as in 10.08.08.15 

VI. Public Input - Floor open for any attendee to speak on items not listed on the agenda 

VII. Agenda Items 

1. Announcement of the Hideout Summer Concert and Silent Auction to benefit Station 56 

2. Presentation of wildfire outlook report 

3. Discussion and possible adoption of Resolution 2024-R-XX regarding the restriction of 

fireworks for the 2024 season 

4. Discussion and possible approval of ORDINANCE # 2024-O-XX regarding executive 

municipal officer salary increases 

5. Discussion and consideration of adopting Ordinance 2024-O-XX amending sections of 

the Hideout code updating sections in Chapter 1.16 Purchasing 

6. Presentation of Fraud Risk 

7. Discussion of the Hideout Coalition 

https://zoom.us/j/4356594739
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCKdWnJad-WwvcAK75QjRb1w/


8. Authorization for the Mayor to enter into a contract with Hansen, Allen, and Luce (HAL) 

Engineering for engineering services to the Town 

9. Consideration and possible approval of a statement by the Town Council regarding 

density under the Hideout Master Development Agreement 

10. Fire Station 56 update 

VIII. Committee Updates 

1. Planning Commission - Planning Commissioner Chase Winder 

2. Economic Development Committee - Council Member Severini 

3. Design Review Committee - Thomas Eddington 

4. Parks, Open Space and Trails (POST) Committee - Council Member Baier 

5. Transportation Committee - Council Member Haselton 

IX. Closed Executive Session - Discussion of pending or reasonably imminent litigation, personnel matters, 

deployment of security personnel, devices or systems, and/or sale or acquisition of real property as needed 

X. Meeting Adjournment 
 

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during the meeting 

should notify the Mayor or City Recorder at 435-659-4739 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

HIDEOUT TOWN COUNCIL 

10860 N. Hideout Trail 

Hideout, UT 84036 

Phone: 435-659-4739 

Posted 06/12/2024 

 



File Attachments for Item:

1. April 11, 2024 Town Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Minutes 1 

Town of Hideout 2 

Town Council Regular Meeting and Continued Public Hearing 3 

April 11, 2024 4 
 5 
 6 

The Town Council of Hideout, Wasatch County, Utah met in Regular Meeting on April 11, 2024 at 6:00 PM 7 
electronically via Zoom and in the City Council Chambers located at 10860 N. Hideout Trail, Hideout, Utah. 8 

 9 

Regular Meeting 10 

 11 

I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 12 

Mayor Rubin called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm and explained the meeting was a hybrid 13 

meeting held both in person and electronically via Zoom. 14 

Mayor Rubin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 15 

II. Roll Call 16 

Present: Mayor Phil Rubin 17 

Council Member Jonathan Gunn 18 

Attending Remotely: Council Member Chris Baier 19 
Council Member Carol Haselton 20 

Council Member Ralph Severini 21 

 22 
Excused: Council Member Bob Nadelberg 23 

 24 
Staff Present: Recorder for Hideout Alicia Fairbourne 25 

Administrative Assistant Carol Kusterle 26 

 27 
Staff Attending Remotely:  Town Administrator Jan McCosh 28 

Town Attorney Polly McClean 29 
Town Planner Thomas Eddington 30 

 31 
 32 

Public Present: None. 33 

Public Attending Remotely: Laura Lauthridge, Joseph Silverzwig, Daniel Warner, JD 34 

Cronin, Edward Kim, Briana Warner and others who may have logged in using a partial name 35 

or using only a phone number. 36 

 37 

III. Approval of Council Minutes 38 

1. February 28, 2024 Town Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT 39 

There were no corrections. 40 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Motion: Council Member Haselton moved to approve the February 28, 2024 Town 1 

Council Meeting Minutes. Council Member Gunn made the second. Voting Yes: Council 2 

Member Baier, Council Member Gunn, Council Member Haselton, Council Member 3 

Severini. Absent from voting: Council Member Nadelberg. There were none opposed. The 4 
motion carried. 5 

IV. Follow up of Items from Approved Minutes 6 

Council Member Severini asked if the support letters that Council Member Haselton had 7 

requested be sent to High Valley Transit were sent. Council Member Haselton stated they had 8 

not been sent; however, High Valley Transit was still reviewing upcoming contracts. She 9 

would provide a more thorough update during the committee update portion of the meeting.  10 

V. Public Input - Floor open for any attendee to speak on items not listed on the agenda 11 

At 6:06 pm, Mayor Rubin opened the floor for public input. There being none, Mayor Rubin 12 

closed the floor at 6:07 pm. 13 

VI. Continued Public Hearing  14 

Prior to discussing the Deer Springs Master Development Agreement, Mayor Rubin 15 

announced that the applicants for the Bloom development project had withdrawn the 16 

application. There would be no further follow-up regarding the project. 17 

1. Consideration of an amendment of the Master Development Agreement (MDA) for Deer 18 

Springs allowing short-term rentals in Phases 2B, 4, and 8 19 

Mayor Rubin presented a theoretical five-year financial plan for the Town, emphasizing the 20 

necessity to generate additional income to avoid significant tax increases by 2028. He 21 

highlighted a proposal from the Deer Springs developer, which included modifying the MDA 22 

to permit nightly rentals and offering additional benefits to the town, such as twenty (20) acre-23 

feet of water at no cost and a fifty-thousand-dollar ($50,000) donation to the fire station fund. 24 

Town Administrator Jan McCosh displayed various occupancy scenarios, though the 25 

discussion revealed a lack of detailed cost analysis, prompting Council Member Severini to 26 

stress the importance of understanding net profits and associated costs. Council Member 27 

Severini expressed concerns based on research and discussions with Park City officials about 28 

potential additional costs for the Town, such as monitoring and enforcement of rental 29 

regulations. 30 

Council Member Gunn also pointed out potential costs related to processing business licenses, 31 

monitoring and auditing, and code enforcement. He speculated on the possible impact on sales 32 

tax revenue if properties shifted from full-time residences to rentals. Town Attorney Polly 33 

McLean noted she had experience with other municipalities managing short-term rentals and 34 

suggested that the taxing process was generally seamless and highlighted minimal 35 

enforcement costs, though she noted the need for potential additional enforcement measures. 36 

Council Member Baier supported the idea of allowing nightly rentals, viewing it as a critical 37 

opportunity for revenue generation given the Town's limited growth prospects. Sheh 38 

emphasized that the current situation in Deer Springs, with Phase 1 already operating nightly 39 

rentals without reported issues, presented an immediate opportunity for financial benefits. 40 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Council Member Severini, however, was cautious, advocating for a disciplined approach, 1 

reflecting the community's preferences against nightly rentals as indicated in surveys and the 2 

General Plan. He supported a more segmented and planned approach to development, aligning 3 

with the Planning Commission's recommendations for allowing short-term rentals in Phase 8. 4 

Mayor Rubin and Council Member Baier acknowledged the Planning Commission's good 5 

work but stressed the Council's broader responsibility to consider revenue and Town 6 

sustainability.  7 

Council Member Gunn leaned towards a controlled, incremental approach, emphasizing the 8 

need for realistic revenue projections and a clear enforcement strategy. He raised concerns 9 

about potential contractual issues regarding expiration of the water and tax assignments, but 10 

noted these could easily be worked through with legal counsel. 11 

Council Member Haselton expressed the need for a town hall-type of meeting to communicate 12 

with residents and gather their input on the issue of nightly rentals. She acknowledged the 13 

concerns of residents who were initially told there would be no nightly rentals, and the 14 

necessity of generating revenue for the Town. Council Member Haselton remained undecided, 15 

considering both the negative experiences with nightly rentals and the financial needs of the 16 

community. 17 

Council Member Gunn inquired if Phase 2A properties, some of which were under contract, 18 

were excluded from the proposal. Mayor Rubin confirmed that Phase 2A properties were 19 

indeed off the table, ensuring that current commitments would not be affected. Mayor Rubin 20 

further clarified that any approved rentals would be managed by designated property 21 

management companies, preventing independent rentals and aiming for proper management 22 

and revenue generation. 23 

Council Member Severini supported the economic benefits of the proposal, emphasizing the 24 

need for revenue and the advantages offered by the developer. He also acknowledged the 25 

community's opposition to nightly rentals due to potential impacts on property values and 26 

shared a personal dilemma between economic growth and preserving home values. 27 

Mayor Rubin suggested deferring the decision to gather more data but recognized the urgency 28 

for builders and potential buyers. He also noted it was a public hearing, and therefore, at 6:54 29 

pm, he opened the floor for any member of the public to speak on the topic. 30 

Laura Lauthridge a buyer under contract on a home in Phase 2A, requested revenue figures 31 

from short-term rentals over the past three years. Mayor Rubin indicated the numbers were 32 

minimal and not significant for the current debate. Ms. Lauthridge questioned the new 33 

requirement for local management companies for nightly rentals, concerned about the impact 34 

on current users of platforms like Airbnb and VRBO. Ms. McLean clarified the current 35 

Hideout Code required the use of a property management company that could respond on site 36 

within thirty (30 minutes), and that platforms such as Airbnb and VRBO were online services 37 

to advertise and not a property management company. 38 

Ms. Lauthridge shared concerns about the potential negative impacts of short-term rentals, 39 

such as noise and disruptive behavior, drawing from her experiences in other states. She 40 

advocated for a new survey or town hall meeting to gather more comprehensive community 41 

feedback on the matter. 42 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Council Member Baier responded to Ms. Lauthridge, acknowledging the concerns but 1 

stressing the necessity of considering the overall financial health of the Town. Council 2 

Member Baier emphasized that the decision at hand was limited to the current proposal, and 3 

any future changes would require further discussion and approval. 4 

Mayor Rubin emphasized that past revenue figures from nightly rentals did not accurately 5 

predict future income, especially with potential adjustments from the Military Installation 6 

Development Authority (MIDA) funds. He noted that historical data only included transient 7 

room tax (TRT) and did not account for additional revenue sources that might be realized with 8 

new regulations. Council Member Gunn added that many residents likely bypassed 9 

management companies by using platforms like Airbnb and VRBO, which deprived the Town 10 

of potential revenue. 11 

Mayor Rubin elaborated on the benefits of requiring local management companies, including 12 

better enforcement and monitoring of independent rentals to ensure compliance and maximize 13 

revenue collection. He also highlighted the increasing operational costs for the Town as more 14 

homes were built and infrastructure responsibilities expanded. Developments like Golden 15 

Eagle, Soaring Hawk, and others would soon require the Town to maintain additional roads, 16 

water lines, sewer lines, and storm drains, significantly increasing expenses. 17 

Mayor Rubin presented a stark projection, indicating that the Town's costs would rise 18 

substantially with continued development, which the current financial models might 19 

understate. He warned that without additional revenue mechanisms, such as those provided 20 

by nightly rentals, the Town might face substantial tax increases. 21 

Ms. Lauthridge questioned whether the Town was planning to rely on nightly rental revenue 22 

to cover the projected shortfalls. Mayor Rubin clarified that while nightly rentals were not the 23 

sole solution, they were one viable mechanism to help generate necessary revenue. Ms. 24 

Lauthridge expressed skepticism, pointing out that the current revenue from nightly rentals, 25 

which was approximately $1,500 annually, would be insignificant in addressing the Town’s 26 

financial needs. 27 

Edward (Ted) Kim, a buyer under contract on a home in Phase 2A, raised concerns regarding 28 

the MDA. He mentioned that the developer, Nate Brockbank, had committed to ensuring that 29 

Phase 2A would not allow short-term rentals. Mr. Kim emphasized that this commitment was 30 

crucial for the agreement and urged that the final document reflected this promise. Mayor 31 

Rubin acknowledged the request and agreed to include the specified language in the 32 

agreement. 33 

Mr. Kim also shared his personal experience living near short-term rentals, noting significant 34 

noise issues that eventually drove him to sell his home. He disagreed with previous assertions 35 

that most short-term renters were respectful, explaining that in his experience, especially 36 

during summer, short-term rentals often attracted large, noisy groups that disrupted the 37 

community. 38 

In response, Mayor Rubin shared his positive experience living in Bear Hollow, a community 39 

which allowed short-term rentals. He noted that incidents were rare and did not significantly 40 

impact his living environment. Mayor Rubin emphasized that while some disturbances may 41 

occur, they were not unique to short-term renters. 42 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Daniel Warner noted he owned a home Hideout and multiple rentals, expressed skepticism 1 

about the financial benefits of short-term rentals for the Town. He suggested that the potential 2 

negative impacts outweighed the revenue generated. Mr. Warner also noted that occupancy 3 

rates for nightly rentals typically peaked at thirty-five percent (35%), which might not yield 4 

the expected financial benefits. He proposed an alternative solution of modestly increasing 5 

property taxes to cover potential revenue shortfalls, suggesting that many residents would 6 

prefer this approach to dealing with the disruptions from short-term rentals. 7 

There being no further public comments, Mayor Rubin closed public input at 7:18 pm. 8 

Council Member Gunn suggested that if the Council decided to proceed with the current 9 

direction, they should do so with a thorough understanding of the financial implications. He 10 

emphasized the need for a deeper financial analysis and consideration of enforcement issues 11 

and overall impacts.  12 

Council Member Baier agreed and highlighted the importance of fully understanding the 13 

financial considerations. She noted that while the lifestyle and feeling of community were 14 

significant, financial implications were also critical and should be thoroughly analyzed before 15 

a decision was made. 16 

Council Member Severini added that the previous analysis lacked detailed financial 17 

projections, such as how changes in the tax base would affect revenue. He pointed out that 18 

the presented spreadsheet was incomplete and called for more detailed cost and revenue 19 

analysis. 20 

Council Member Baier also mentioned the offer of water shares as part of the consideration, 21 

stressing their importance and the need to include them in the overall calculation. However, 22 

Council Member Severini expressed concern that no public analysis on the value and 23 

necessity of the water shares had been published, making it difficult to gauge their true value 24 

for the Town. 25 

Mayor Rubin acknowledged the need for further work and agreed that more detailed 26 

information should be gathered before a decision was made. Council Member Severini 27 

expressed his willingness to participate in defining the required analyses to ensure the next 28 

iteration of the MDA reflected the necessary revisions. Council Member Gunn requested that 29 

the MDA include language ensuring that the tax collection rights, and the water rights 30 

survived the termination in perpetuity. 31 

Motion: Council Member Gunn moved to defer the decision to the May 9, 2024 meeting to 32 

allow time for a more comprehensive analysis and revisions to the MDA. Council Member 33 

Haselton made the second. Voting Yes: Council Member Baier, Council Member Gunn, 34 

Council Member Haselton, Council Member Severini. Absent from voting: Council 35 

Member Nadelberg. There were none opposed. The motion carried. 36 

VII. Agenda Items 37 

1. Announcement of the annual 2024 Jordanelle Community Clean Up day 38 

Council Member Baier announced the annual 2024 Jordanelle Community Clean Up Day, 39 

scheduled for Sunday, April 28. The event would begin at 10:00 am and would last for 40 

approximately two hours. Participants would gather to pick up trash that had accumulated 41 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 15 April 11, 2024 

over the winter, with trash bags provided by the organizers. She recommended bringing a 1 

grabber tool, available at Home Depot, to make the task easier. 2 

Volunteers could sign in and collect their supplies at either the Hideout Town Hall area or the 3 

clubhouse at The Retreat at Jordanelle. A dumpster would be accessible at the Hideout Public 4 

Works building, and an employee from the Hideout Public Works Department had 5 

volunteered to assist on the day. The cleanup would be followed by a lunch and social 6 

gathering at The Retreat clubhouse. For more information, participants could refer to the flyer 7 

on the Hideout website or contact Nikki Key, who organized the event annually. 8 

2. Presentation from the Economic Development Committee regarding the town-owned 9 

land at the entrance at Ross Creek  10 

Council Member Severini introduced a presentation from the Economic Development 11 

Committee (EDC) regarding Town-owned land near the entrance to Ross Creek. Council 12 

Member Severini praised the collaborative efforts of the EDC members, including resident 13 

JD Cronin, Financial Consultant Katie Shepley, Council Member Jonathan Gunn, and 14 

Planning Commission Chair Tony Matyszczyk. Mr. Cronin then provided an overview of the 15 

framework they developed, highlighting the importance of documenting processes to support 16 

good decision-making and maintaining transparency. 17 

Mr. Cronin explained that the framework was not intended to rewrite policies but to provide 18 

structure and archival documentation for the Town's projects, ensuring repeatable and 19 

auditable processes. He emphasized the necessity of clear communication and structured 20 

handling of Requests for Information (RFIs) and Requests for Proposals (RFPs). Mr. Cronin 21 

acknowledged the challenges in implementing such processes and the importance of having 22 

a simple reference for volunteers and officials working on these projects. 23 

Council Member Severini added that the Committee had met with potential developers to 24 

discuss the Ross Creek property and other opportunities. He summarized the presentation, 25 

which included information about the property, its potential uses, zoning details, and survey 26 

results indicating strong community support for amenities associated with the land. 27 

The Committee identified potential challenges and opportunities, including the possibility of 28 

acquiring additional land from the Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) to expand development. 29 

They were considering various development options, such as mixed-use projects, commercial 30 

and retail spaces, and possibly a midsize hotel as an anchor tenant. Council Member Severini 31 

noted that the current economic environment, including particularly high interest rates, 32 

affected development feasibility. 33 

Ms. McCosh mentioned that they had begun reaching out to contacts at the BOR to explore 34 

the possibility of acquiring adjacent land. Council Member Baier suggested leveraging past 35 

experiences with the BOR to navigate the process more effectively. The discussion 36 

highlighted the need for strategic contacts and potential partnerships to facilitate development. 37 

Mayor Rubin and other Council Members expressed their appreciation for the Committee's 38 

efforts and the thoroughness of the presentation.  39 

 40 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 15 April 11, 2024 

3. Consideration of approval of a Franchise Agreement between Comcast of Wasatch Inc. 1 

and the Town of Hideout 2 

Mayor Rubin introduced the item and explained that public utilities required agreements with 3 

the Town to provide services. Comcast had expressed interest in expanding its cable services 4 

to Hideout. 5 

Ms. McLean provided an overview of the franchise agreement, highlighting its standard 6 

language and the emphasis on placing lines underground, except for necessary above-ground 7 

components. She noted that Comcast had been cooperative and the agreement included the 8 

maximum franchise fee, ensuring the Town would receive the highest possible revenue. 9 

Joseph Silverzwig from Comcast addressed the Council, emphasizing the company's 10 

commitment to minimizing visual and physical disruption through the use of Epon 11 

architecture, which involves fiber-to-premises and reduced above-ground structures. He 12 

reassured the Council that the majority of the infrastructure would be underground and 13 

outlined the construction methods to avoid significant road disruptions. He also emphasized 14 

Comcast's commitment to being a reliable community partner and detailed their efforts to 15 

support local nonprofits and provide affordable internet programs. 16 

Council Member Baier raised concerns about the placement of infrastructure above ground 17 

and requested clarification on the build-out plans. Mr. Silverzwig confirmed that Comcast 18 

planned to build out one hundred percent (100%) of the current and future parts of Hideout, 19 

with no new poles to be installed unless existing infrastructure required it. He reassured the 20 

Council that the construction method involved horizontal drilling to minimize road damage 21 

and that any damage to private property, such as sprinkler systems, would be repaired by 22 

Comcast. 23 

Council Member Gunn raised three questions regarding the franchise agreement with 24 

Comcast. First, Council Member Gunn inquired about the five percent (5%) franchise fee and 25 

whether it applied to all services provided by Comcast, including internet service, or just 26 

specific services like television. 27 

Mr. Silverzwig explained that the five percent (5%) franchise fee was limited to television 28 

services due to regulations under the Federal Cable Act. This Act, part of broader FCC 29 

regulations, capped franchise fees at five percent (5%) of television revenue for cable 30 

providers. Therefore, the fee would be applied only to the television portion of a customer's 31 

bill. For instance, if a customer’s total bill was two-hundred dollars ($200) per month, with 32 

one-hundred fifty ($150) allocated to television services, the franchise fee would be five 33 

percent (5%) of that one-hundred fifty dollars ($150). The collected fees would then be paid 34 

quarterly to the Town of Hideout. 35 

Council Member Gunn inquired if a map of the service area could be attached as an exhibit 36 

to the contract. Mr. Silverzwig agreed to provide the map but preferred not to include it as a 37 

formal exhibit in the contract. He assured Council that the map would be available for public 38 

record. 39 

Lastly, Council Member Gunn expressed strong opposition to any new poles or the stringing 40 

of cables on existing poles, referencing Section 3.1 of the agreement. Council Member Gunn 41 

requested the removal of the term "poles" and the addition of language explicitly prohibiting 42 

new pole installations or cable stringing. Mr. Silverzwig explained that while the current plan 43 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 15 April 11, 2024 

did not include new poles and mostly involved underground infrastructure, the existing 1 

language allowed necessary flexibility for future infrastructure changes or unusual situations. 2 

He emphasized that any construction would still require local permits and compliance with 3 

community ordinances, assuring that Comcast would follow the Town’s regulations and 4 

preferences. 5 

Council Member Gunn expressed skepticism and highlighted that the existing language gave 6 

Comcast the freedom to install poles, despite verbal assurances. Council Member Gunn 7 

indicated an intention to vote against the agreement unless the contract language was amended 8 

to explicitly prohibit poles, pointing out that the merger and integration clause (Section 3.3) 9 

would render verbal promises unenforceable. Mr. Silverzwig acknowledged Council Member 10 

Gunn’s right to vote as he saw fit, maintaining that the current language was standard and 11 

necessary for operational flexibility while reiterating Comcast’s commitment to following 12 

local guidelines and maintaining open communication with the Town. 13 

Council Member Severini expressed appreciation for Comcast's interest in the Town and 14 

raised several questions. First, he sought clarification on the franchise fee structure, 15 

confirming that the Town would receive five percent (5%) of Comcast's television service 16 

revenue. Mr. Silverzwig explained that the fee was based on the percentage of customers 17 

purchasing cable plans, which was consistent with similar broadband franchises. 18 

Council Member Severini inquired about the timeframe for laying fiber in the Town. Mr. 19 

Silverzwig indicated that construction of trunk lines was expected to begin in 2025, with 20 

customer services likely to be available by 2026. 21 

Council Member Severini also asked for statistics on service outages, noting the importance 22 

of reliable internet service. Mr. Silverzwig highlighted Comcast's high reliability, citing a 23 

ninety-nine point ninety-nine percent (99.99%) uptime due to continuous network upgrades 24 

and advanced technology that enabled quick identification and repair of outages. He agreed 25 

to provide regular outage reports and assured the Council of Comcast's commitment to 26 

maintaining a highly reliable network. 27 

Council Member Baier sought clarification from Ms. McLean about the Council's options 28 

when presented with a franchise agreement. Ms. McLean explained that state law required 29 

parity among service providers, meaning the Town could not favor one company over another. 30 

The agreements must be consistent, and similar in key terms, which had been ensured through 31 

careful review. 32 

Council Member Baier mentioned the Town's initial franchise agreement, which included a 33 

commitment to cover the entire town, addressed a critical need for reliable internet service. 34 

Mr. Silverzwig reiterated that Comcast planned to build out to every residence in Hideout and 35 

emphasized the necessity of flexibility in the agreement to accommodate future changes and 36 

community needs. 37 

Council Member Baier expressed concerns about ensuring that commitments were 38 

enforceable within the contract's written terms, highlighting the importance of doing the right 39 

thing for the Town. Mr. Silverzwig acknowledged this concern and stressed Comcast's 40 

commitment to serving the community fully, while noting the challenge of incorporating 41 

every specific assurance into the contract without compromising necessary flexibility. 42 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Council Member Gunn emphasized the Town's scenic views as a significant asset and opposed 1 

any infrastructure that could impact these views negatively, particularly new poles or wires 2 

on existing poles. Mr. Silverzwig stated that while the current construction plans did not 3 

involve installing poles, removing the authorization for poles from the contract would require 4 

consultation with his technical team. He proposed that the Town's permitting authority could 5 

reject any such proposals, ensuring the community's interests were protected. He urged the 6 

Council to rely on existing ordinances to regulate construction rather than amending the 7 

franchise agreement, aiming to maintain flexibility while addressing community concerns. 8 

Council Member Baier asked Mr. Silverzwig about the urgency behind the request for 9 

immediate action on the franchise agreement. Mr. Silverzwig explained that while there was 10 

some urgency due to pre-committed funding and the planned construction of trunk lines next 11 

year, a delay of a few weeks would not be an issue. He emphasized the importance of securing 12 

confidence in their ability to proceed with spending the allocated funds. 13 

Mayor Rubin intervened and noted that Comcast had approached the Council many months 14 

ago, but the final document only recently became available for discussion. He highlighted that 15 

the delay was not due to the Council’s actions but rather the time it took Comcast to finalize 16 

the agreement. Mayor Rubin proposed delaying the decision until the next Town Council 17 

Meeting on May 9th to allow both parties to address the comments and concerns raised during 18 

the current meeting. 19 

Mr. Silverzwig agreed to this timeline and committed to reviewing the undergrounding 20 

provisions and finding ways to make them more acceptable to the Council. He also agreed to 21 

investigate and potentially include a required build-out provision similar to what might exist 22 

in other franchise agreements the Town had, and committed to working with his team to 23 

ensure these adjustments could be made. 24 

Motion: Council Member Gunn moved to continue the approval of the Comcast Franchise 25 
Agreement to the May 9, 2024 meeting to allow Mr. Silverzwig time to address the 26 

comments and concerns raised. Council Member Baier made the second. Voting Yes: 27 
Council Member Baier, Council Member Gunn, Council Member Haselton, Council 28 
Member Severini. Absent from voting: Council Member Nadelberg. There were none 29 

opposed. The motion carried. 30 

4. Update and discussion regarding noxious weed abatement methods 31 

Mayor Rubin adjusted the meeting agenda to prioritize Administrative Assistant Carol 32 

Kusterle's update on noxious weed abatement methods. Ms. Kusterle outlined the process of 33 

weed abatement, mentioning that unpaid invoices from last year’s treatment could be 34 

financially significant for the Town. She explained that these costs would be added to the tax 35 

statements of the affected parcels, which could take years to collect, particularly from 36 

developers who delay paying taxes. She emphasized the need to determine by September 37 

whether continuing with the abatement process would be financially feasible. 38 

Council Member Gunn inquired about accrued interest on unpaid amounts, which Ms. 39 

Kusterle confirmed accrues at one point five percent (1.5%) per month. Despite the potential 40 

for earning interest, the delay in payment could extend up to five years. Mayor Rubin 41 

suggested including the anticipated costs in the budget to ensure the Town could sustain 42 

another season of treatments if developers remain non-compliant. 43 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Ms. Kusterle reported significant compliance among single-family homes but highlighted 1 

ongoing issues with large undeveloped parcels owned by developers. Council Member Baier 2 

encouraged maintaining the current momentum, acknowledging the progress made and the 3 

importance of continued efforts. The discussion concluded with consensus on budgeting for 4 

potential costs and ensuring continued communication and enforcement with developers to 5 

manage noxious weeds effectively.  6 

5. Update regarding the implementation of speed control measures on Shoreline Drive 7 

Mayor Rubin provided an update on the implementation of speed control measures on 8 

Shoreline Drive. He mentioned that the Town had initiated a spring and summer maintenance 9 

package that included crack sealing, striping, and rubber banding with a focus on enhancing 10 

visibility and effectiveness of speed reduction efforts. The proposed striping would feature a 11 

wide band to reinforce the slowdown message. 12 

Additionally, the Public Works team was in the process of installing new speed signs, ensuring 13 

they were properly powered and functional. Proposed locations for these signs included areas 14 

identified as problematic, such as the Longview side near the roundabout towards Rustler and 15 

the Shoreline section, which had received significant feedback. Temporary signs installed 16 

during the winter would be replaced with permanent ones when weather permitted. The 17 

implementation of these measures was expected to occur shortly. 18 

6. Consideration of adopting Resolution 2024-R-XX prohibiting fireworks within the Town 19 

of Hideout during the 2024 year 20 

Mayor Rubin introduced Resolution 2024-R-04, which would prohibit fireworks within the 21 

Town of Hideout during the 2024 year. This annual resolution aimed to control open flames 22 

and fireworks, consistent with previous years. Mayor Rubin mentioned that despite occasional 23 

small backyard fireworks, there had been no significant incidents. 24 

Council Member Baier raised concerns about aerial fireworks and stressed the importance of 25 

enforcement. She inquired if the Town might issue permits for private or public fireworks 26 

displays. Ms. McLean clarified that the Resolution targeted individuals setting off fireworks 27 

without permits, while there was an existing provision for permitted shows in coordination 28 

with the fire department. 29 

Council Member Baier expressed full support for the ban, citing wildfire threats and awaiting 30 

further information on the wildfire season forecast.  31 

Council Member Severini highlighted the recent increase in home insurance rates due to 32 

wildfire risks, emphasizing the importance of proactive measures. Council Member Haselton 33 

mentioned past issues with people setting off fireworks in State Park parking lot. Mayor Rubin 34 

clarified that the Town had no authority over the State Park but noted their alignment with 35 

county fire guidelines. 36 

The Council discussed leveraging their good relationship with the State Park to ensure 37 

enforcement of the fireworks ban and effective communication regarding fire safety 38 

measures. 39 

There being no further discussion from Council, Mayor Rubin asked for a motion to adopt the 40 

Resolution.  41 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Motion: Council Member Gunn moved to adopt Resolution 2024-R-04 prohibiting 1 

fireworks within the Town of Hideout in the 2024 year. Council Member Baier made the 2 

second. Voting Yes: Council Member Baier, Council Member Gunn, Council Member 3 

Haselton, Council Member Severini. Absent from voting: Council Member Nadelberg. 4 
There were none opposed. The motion carried. 5 

7. Approval for the Mayor to execute an Interlocal Agreement between the Town of Hideout 6 

and Heber Valley Animal Services 7 

Mayor Rubin introduced the proposal to execute an Interlocal Agreement between the Town 8 

of Hideout and Heber Valley Animal Services. This agreement was brought forth because 9 

Heber City had taken over animal control duties from Wasatch County. Mayor Rubin clarified 10 

that the Town currently paid extra for animal control and had experienced several incidents, 11 

including a recent one involving injuries caused by uncontrolled dogs. 12 

Council Member Severini inquired whether the service level would remain the same, to which 13 

Mayor Rubin responded that the change was purely administrative, with Heber City managing 14 

the services instead of the county. The service level and response would remain unchanged. 15 

Council Member Gunn discussed the contract terms, noting the 24-month termination notice, 16 

and the importance of maintaining service quality. Mayor Rubin reassured the Council that 17 

the Town would retain oversight and could address any service deficiencies. 18 

Statistics on service calls and budget impacts were reviewed, indicating a growing number of 19 

calls and a consistent budget allocation of ten-thousand dollars ($10,000) per year. Mayor 20 

Rubin emphasized the agreement’s value and the benefits of continued robust animal control 21 

services. 22 

Motion: Council Member Baier moved to authorize the Mayor to execute an Interlocal 23 
Agreement between the Town of Hideout and Heber Valley Animal Services. Council 24 
Member Severini made the second. Voting Yes: Council Member Baier, Council Member 25 

Gunn, Council Member Haselton, and Council Member Severini. Absent from voting: 26 
Council Member Nadelberg. There were none opposed. The motion carried. 27 

Mayor Rubin expressed appreciation for the support, highlighting the effectiveness of the 28 

animal control services in addressing and escalating serious incidents appropriately. 29 

8. Consideration and approval for an allocation of funds not to exceed $99,479.00 to pay the 30 

Vantage Lift Station invoice 31 

Mayor Rubin presented the need for an allocation of funds to pay the Vantage Lift Station 32 

invoice. This request followed a previous Council approval of three-hundred thousand dollars 33 

($300,000) for building a new lift station, a project that had since incurred additional costs 34 

due to changes and enhancements aimed at ensuring long-term reliability. The final cost had 35 

increased by roughly one-hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), primarily due to adding a 36 

third pump and managing elevation changes in the pressurized pipeline. 37 

Mayor Rubin emphasized the necessity of these changes for the system's robustness and noted 38 

that while the Town had the funds available, Council approval was required to cover this 39 

overage. The additional funds would cover the improvements and ensure continuous waste 40 

management without the risk of system overloads or backups. 41 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Council Member Severini questioned if the bill would be paid before the project’s completion. 1 

Mayor Rubin clarified that while the immediate work covered by this invoice was complete, 2 

there were remaining items to be finished, including the removal of the old lift station and 3 

restoration of affected areas. Mayor Rubin assured that the remaining funds would be withheld 4 

until these items were completed to satisfaction. 5 

Council Member Severini raised concerns about the potential to delay payments until the 6 

entire project was finished. Ms. McLean indicated that while some leverage could be used to 7 

ensure completion, they could not withhold payment for the completed work. However, 8 

additional protective measures and contractual agreements would be put in place to cap costs 9 

and ensure no further increases. 10 

Council Member Gunn expressed the need to abstain from voting due to a potential conflict 11 

of interest, as the completion of the lift station would directly benefit his property by 12 

mitigating unpleasant odors.  13 

Motion: Council Member Severini moved to authorize the allocation of funds not to exceed 14 
$99,479.00 to pay the Vantage Lift Station invoice, with the conditions as described. 15 
Council Member Haselton made the second. Voting Yes: Council Member Baier, Council 16 
Member Haselton, Council Member Severini. Abstaining from voting: Council Member 17 

Gunn. Absent from voting: Council Member Nadelberg. There were none opposed. The 18 
motion carried. 19 

9. Discussion regarding designated code enforcement officers and procedure 20 

The Council discussed the issue of code enforcement, which had been requested for more 21 

detailed consideration in a previous meeting. Ms. McLean explained that while the Public 22 

Works staff served as primary code enforcement officers, they faced threats while performing 23 

their duties. This situation raised concerns about their safety, prompting a discussion on 24 

whether and when to involve the Sheriff’s department. 25 

Council Member Baier expressed deep concern about the threats against Public Works staff 26 

and suggested tabling the discussion until the next meeting. She requested more information 27 

on who the designated code enforcement officers were, recent statistics on code violations, 28 

and a clear procedure for when to escalate issues to the Sheriff’s department. 29 

The Council agreed to delay the discussion to the next meeting, with Ms. McLean committing 30 

to prepare a detailed staff report to facilitate a comprehensive discussion. 31 

10. Consideration of approving Ordinance 2024-O-XX amending Hideout Municipal Code 32 

1.16.060 Exemptions to Competitive Bidding Requirements 33 

Clerk’s note: This item was not discussed due to lack of presentation materials. 34 

11. Presentation and discussion of responses to a Request for Proposal (RFP) for public 35 

relations services, with consideration of authorization for the Mayor to enter into a 36 

contract for public relations 37 

Mayor Rubin introduced the discussion on the responses to the Request for Proposal (RFP) 38 

for public relations services. The focus was to engage professional public relations (PR) 39 

services to assist in creating a strategic plan for the Town and to effectively communicate the 40 

need for an upcoming property tax increase due to necessary investments. 41 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Ms. McCosh provided an overview of the RFP process and the three responses received. After 1 

evaluating the proposals, Ms. McCosh recommended Jacques and Associates for their 2 

expertise, particularly in municipal communications and prior relevant work with other cities. 3 

Despite having familiarity with X Factor, which had been previously engaged for the Town 4 

Retreat and temporary fire station fundraising efforts, Ms. McCosh considered it beneficial to 5 

work with a new firm to gain fresh perspectives and comparisons. 6 

Council Member Baier raised questions about the number of hours and cost estimates 7 

provided by each firm, highlighting a need for clarity on deliverables and how costs might 8 

escalate with changes in the project scope. Ms. McCosh responded by emphasizing the 9 

importance of milestones and fixed pricing to manage the scope and costs effectively. 10 

Council Member Severini echoed concerns about scope creep and the necessity of having 11 

clear milestones and specific deliverables. The importance of having a well-defined scope to 12 

avoid unexpected costs and to ensure accountability was discussed. 13 

Ultimately, Council decided to table the decision, agreeing that more work was needed to 14 

clarify the deliverables and to get further details from all the proposals. Mayor Rubin and Ms. 15 

McCosh, along with Council Member Baier, planned to refine the list of deliverables and seek 16 

confirmation from the PR firms on whether these could be met within the proposed fee 17 

structures. 18 

The Council agreed to revisit the matter in the next meeting with the refined details to make 19 

a well-informed decision. 20 

12. Consideration of approving a resolution to authorize the leasing terms on the Public 21 

Works vehicles 22 

Mayor Rubin introduced the agenda item regarding the leasing terms for Public Works 23 

vehicles. Historically, the Town had leased vehicles on a yearly basis, which involved 24 

significant costs and efforts related to outfitting the trucks with plows and other equipment. 25 

However, the leasing rules had changed, allowing for longer-term leases, such as three years, 26 

which could offer more stability and reduce the repetitive labor associated with the annual 27 

lease renewals. 28 

Mayor Rubin explained that while the longer-term leases were beneficial, they raised concerns 29 

for leasing companies about the potential for changes in Town leadership due to elections. 30 

Therefore, leasing companies required written assurances that the Town would honor the lease 31 

terms regardless of future Council changes.  32 

Ms. McLean confirmed that the current Council could not bind future Councils and that 33 

budgets were approved annually, which was why the leasing companies sought these 34 

assurances.  35 

Council Member Severini inquired about the reasons for leasing rather than purchasing 36 

vehicles. Mayor Rubin explained that leasing had been financially advantageous compared to 37 

buying, but the Town was considering a mix of leasing and purchasing to optimize costs and 38 

manage the vehicle fleet's lifecycle more effectively. 39 

The discussion included questions about interest rates and terms of the lease, with Mayor 40 

Rubin and Council Member Severini seeking clarification on whether the rates were 41 

adjustable and how they would be affected by market changes. Ms. McLean assured the 42 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Council that the terms were standard and vetted through the State Procurement Office, 1 

emphasizing the benefits of using the state program for better rates and streamlined processes. 2 

Motion: Council Member Baier moved to approve Resolution 2024-R-05, authorizing the 3 
leasing terms on the Public Works vehicles. Council Member Severini made the second. 4 
Voting Yes: Council Member Baier, Council Member Gunn, Council Member Haselton, 5 
and Council Member Severini. Absent from voting: Council Member Nadelberg. There 6 

were none opposed. The motion carried.  7 

13. Consideration and approval for the Mayor to advance funds for the temporary fire 8 

station fundraising efforts 9 

Mayor Rubin brought up the final agenda item regarding the temporary fire station fundraising 10 

efforts. He explained that a line item had been included for temporarily utilizing Town funds 11 

to maintain progress on the fire station until the fundraising efforts provided the necessary 12 

financial support, and that the issue would be more appropriately addressed through a budget 13 

adjustment public hearing which would be held in June.  14 

The idea was that the Town would commit funds to initiate the fire station project, with the 15 

expectation that these costs would be offset by future fundraising. Mayor Rubin noted that the 16 

Town had sufficient funds to cover any immediate costs and reiterated that the budget 17 

adjustment would be handled in the upcoming budget amendment process, rather than through 18 

a resolution at this meeting. 19 

Prior to starting the Committee Updates, there was a recess at 10:06 pm. 20 

The meeting resumed at 10:11 pm. 21 

VIII. Committee Updates 22 

1. Design Review Committee - Thomas Eddington 23 

Mr. Eddington stated there were no new applications to the DRC. 24 

2. Parks, Open Space and Trails (POST) Committee - Council Member Baier 25 

Council Member Baier provided an update on the Parks, Open Space, and Trails (POST) 26 

Committee's recent activities. She noted that Nancy O'Toole, a grant writer from 27 

Mountainland Association of Governments (MAG), submitted a Utah outdoor recreation 28 

grant application for a project at Ross Creek, sponsored by Hideout. The estimated total 29 

project cost was around one-hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000), which would 30 

encompass cash, grant money, in-kind contributions, and donations. The project would 31 

involve creating a new trail section to connect the original Ross Creek parking lot to the 32 

existing perimeter trail, along with various improvements like culverts, erosion matting, 33 

fencing, ramps, a bridge with railings, a kiosk, and benches. 34 

Council Member Baier highlighted the significant contribution commitment from the State 35 

Park and Park Manager Jason Whitaker, who offered to donate equipment and crew to aid in 36 

the project. Additionally, volunteers and a trail builder were expected to contribute to the 37 

effort. The Committee was optimistic about securing the grant for the project and was 38 

awaiting further feedback.  39 



 

Hideout Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 15 of 15 April 11, 2024 

Council Member Baier also mentioned that the POST Committee had a meeting scheduled 1 

for the following Tuesday, with plans to focus on the Klaim trail network design as their next 2 

endeavor. 3 

3. Transportation Committee - Council Member Haselton 4 

Council Member Haselton provided an update on the Transportation Committee's recent 5 

activities. The Richardson Flat bus service, operated by Park City, had been serving Hideout 6 

members due to the absence of High Valley Transit. However, Park City found the service 7 

costly and was deliberating its continuation for the summer and next winter. The main 8 

challenge was the lack of parking in Hideout for bus pickups. There was discussion on 9 

possible proactive measures to encourage Park City to continue the service, such as 10 

incentivizing or collaborating with them. 11 

The conversation also touched on the developments around the Jordanelle area, specifically 12 

regarding transportation. Mayor Rubin mentioned that MIDA was working on transit around 13 

the north side of the Jordanelle, potentially offering opportunities for Hideout. The discussion 14 

veered towards exploring partnerships with MIDA and Deer Valley to address transportation 15 

needs, especially during peak seasons. 16 

Council Member Baier raised concerns about understanding the needs of residents living in 17 

the Hideout area, particularly those in the affordable housing community. There was a 18 

consensus on the importance of staying informed about their needs and exploring ways to 19 

support them effectively. 20 

IX. Closed Executive Session - Discussion of pending or reasonably imminent litigation, 21 

personnel matters, and/or sale or acquisition of real property as needed 22 

There was no need for executive session. 23 

X. Meeting Adjournment 24 

There being no further business, Mayor Rubin called for a motion to adjourn. 25 

Motion: Council Member Gunn moved to adjourn the meeting. Council Member Baier 26 
made the second. Voting Yes: Council Member Baier, Council Member Gunn, Council 27 

Member Haselton, and Council Member Severini. Absent from voting: Council Member 28 
Nadelberg. There were none opposed. The motion carried. 29 

The meeting adjourned at 10:31 pm. 30 

 31 

 32 
 33 
 34 

 ______________________________ 35 
 Alicia Fairbourne, Recorder for Hideout 36 
 37 
 38 



File Attachments for Item:

1. Discussion and possible approval of the amendments to the Town Budget for the Fiscal Year 

2023-2024



Page 1 of 1  

HIDEOUT, UTAH RESOLUTION NUMBER 2024-R-06 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 HIDEOUT 

BUDGET 

 

WHEREAS, Utah Law allows for the amendment of the budgets of municipalities to 

reflect changes in revenues and expenditures and to make transfers between departments to 

meet the best interests of the municipalities; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Hideout has complied with the notice and public hearing 

requirements of the Utah law in considering an amendment of its 2023-2024 fiscal budgets 

for the General Fund Enterprise, Enterprise Fund, MIDA Fund, and Class C Road Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Hideout Council has determined that an amendment to its 

2023-2024 budget is in the best interest of the municipality and its residents and in order for 

the budget to match the actual revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: that the amended 

Town of Hideout Budgets as attached as Exhibit A, for the 2023-2024 fiscal year of the Town 

of Hideout, Utah are hereby adopted. That any amounts in the General Fund in excess of 

thirty-five percent (35%) shall be designated to be used within the Town of Hideout Capital 

Projects Fund plan as specified in Utah Code Annotated §10-6-116. 

ADOPTED and resolved by the Town Council of the Town of Hideout, this 13th 

day of June 2024. 

 

TOWN OF HIDEOUT 

 

 

By:  ____________________ 

        Phil Rubin, Mayor   

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________  

Alicia Fairbourne, Recorder for Hideout 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A:  Town of Hideout Budget FY ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

 

Alicia Fairbourne
Alicia Fairbourne

Alicia Fairbourne
Phil Rubin

Alicia Fairbourne
Town Seal



Town of Hideout – General Fund 

FY24 Budget Restatement

$270k favorable to budget is primarily due to:

✓ Lower legal expense - $152k.
✓ Change in the allocation of salaries/benefits between general and enterprise fund as well 

as not hiring a new employee until end of fiscal year and loss of town engineer  - $130k.
✓ Lower parks and trail expense, $16k, and public safety due to lower noxious weed 

expense, $10k.

✓ Favorability was partially offset by higher outsourced engineering costs due to new town 
projects and outsourcing town engineer’s responsibilities who resigned in January – ($50k).

License/Permits net with professional services



Town of Hideout – Enterprise Fund

FY24 Budget Restatement

$396k favorable to budget is primarily due to:

✓ Revenue favorability of $80k is primarily due to higher stand-by water fees 

and water/sewer/storm billing to residents.

✓ Expense favorability of $317k is primarily due to:

❖ Lower sewer, storm and water repairs and maintenance - $251k

❖ Lower engineering expense - $34k

❖ Offset by higher depreciation – $25k



Town of Hideout
Operational Budget Report

10 General Fund - 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2024
100.00% of the fiscal year has expired

INTENDED FOR MANAGEMENT USE ONLY Page 1 6/3/2024 06:11 PM

Change In Net Position
  Revenue:
    Taxes
      3110 Property taxes - current 248,641.10 0.00 267,578.61 267,579.00 100.00%
      3120 Prior year property taxes - delinquent paid 38,548.54 0.00 38,321.93 41,806.00 91.67%
      3124 Fee-in-lieu of property taxes 6,004.32 0.00 5,461.83 5,958.00 91.67%
      3130 Sales tax 209,493.64 0.00 200,176.66 240,212.00 83.33%
      3136 Transient Room Tax Revenue 1,571.04 0.00 867.58 946.00 91.71%
      3137 Franchise Fee Revenue 4,676.28 0.00 3,335.06 4,002.00 83.33%
      3140 Municipal energy taxes 62,751.83 0.00 81,217.53 97,461.00 83.33%
    Total Taxes 571,686.75 0.00 596,959.20 657,964.00 90.73%

    Licenses and permits
      3210 Business licenses 1,275.00 0.00 2,209.00 2,410.00 91.66%
      3215 MDA revenue 108,000.00 0.00 108,000.00 108,000.00 100.00%
      3221 Building permits 293,659.67 0.00 258,647.09 366,417.00 70.59%
      3222 Roadway Fee 37,500.00 0.00 27,100.00 38,392.00 70.59%
      3223 Excavation Permit Fee Revenue 7,748.00 0.00 1,704.00 1,859.00 91.66%
      3225 Application Fee Revenue 10,050.00 0.00 500.00 545.00 91.74%
      3227 Construction/Other Sign Fee 7,400.00 0.00 5,380.00 5,869.00 91.67%
      3229 Subdivision Development Fees 21,400.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00%
      3230 5% Project (Engineering) Fees 134,092.00 0.00 15,611.55 15,612.00 100.00%
      3231 Planning & Zoning Fees 124,579.27 0.00 131,975.59 186,965.00 70.59%
    Total Licenses and permits 745,703.94 0.00 556,127.23 731,069.00 76.07%

    Charges for services
      3490 Other services revenue 2,445.89 0.00 500.00 500.00 100.00%
    Total Charges for services 2,445.89 0.00 500.00 500.00 100.00%

    Fines and forfeitures
      3510 Fines and forfeitures 0.00 6.00 262.00 250.00 104.80%
    Total Fines and forfeitures 0.00 6.00 262.00 250.00 104.80%

    Interest
      3610 Interest earnings 22,437.03 0.00 97,902.09 99,102.00 98.79%
      3615 Street impact fees (interest) 16,698.00 0.00 12,554.94 16,740.00 75.00%
    Total Interest 39,135.03 0.00 110,457.03 115,842.00 95.35%

    Miscellaneous revenue
      3690 Other revenue 408.95 0.00 632.78 633.00 99.97%
    Total Miscellaneous revenue 408.95 0.00 632.78 633.00 99.97%

    Contributions and transfers
      3848 Transfer From Class C Road Fund 0.00 0.00 189,843.00 189,843.00 100.00%
      3891 Gain/Loss on Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 (1,177.00) (1,177.00) 100.00%
    Total Contributions and transfers 0.00 0.00 188,666.00 188,666.00 100.00%

  Total Revenue: 1,359,380.56 6.00 1,453,604.24 1,694,924.00 85.76%

  Expenditures:
    General government
      Administrative
        5001.1 Admin Contract services 4,858.49 0.00 8,921.43 9,732.00 91.67%
        5001.2 Admin Council pay 266.14 0.00 944.57 1,030.00 91.71%
        5001.4 Admin Insurance 11,805.34 0.00 23,045.59 25,141.00 91.67%
        5001.6 Admin Mileage reimbursement 1,928.64 114.63 3,011.54 3,285.00 91.68%
        5001.7 Admin Office supplies 3,687.93 0.00 6,744.79 7,358.00 91.67%
        5001.8 Admin Personnel 343,733.96 10,654.91 266,907.33 291,172.00 91.67%
        5001.9 Admin Public notices 731.49 0.00 3,967.57 4,328.00 91.67%
        5001.A Admin Security Alarm Monitoring 912.00 0.00 1,320.00 1,440.00 91.67%
        5003 Admin Benefits 141,173.65 2,035.97 178,110.22 194,302.00 91.67%
        5004 Admin Other 1,151.88 35.00 8,389.25 9,152.00 91.67%
        5010 Admin Information Technology 15,002.07 0.00 45,279.71 21,396.00 211.63%
        5016 Admin Telephone 5,662.72 0.00 11,454.04 12,495.00 91.67%
        5017 Admin Training 2,177.67 0.00 3,628.79 3,959.00 91.66%
        5018 Admin Website 1,181.00 0.00 40.00 44.00 90.91%
        5019 Admin Membership 5,540.10 0.00 10,109.13 11,028.00 91.67%
        5030 Admin Repairs & Maintenance 4,250.40 0.00 7,235.50 7,893.00 91.67%
        5050 Admin Utilities 10,299.52 0.00 16,010.64 17,466.00 91.67%
        5069 Miscellaneous 278.95 0.00 0.00 (52,000.00) 0.00%
      Total Administrative 554,641.95 12,840.51 595,120.10 569,221.00 104.55%

Prior YTD
Current 
Period Current YTD

Annual 
Budget Percent Used



Town of Hideout
Operational Budget Report

10 General Fund - 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2024
100.00% of the fiscal year has expired

INTENDED FOR MANAGEMENT USE ONLY Page 2 6/3/2024 06:11 PM

      Professional services
        5002.1 Accounting 80,099.69 4,000.00 41,829.83 50,196.00 83.33%
        5002.2 Legal 274,494.61 11,225.00 114,414.06 137,297.00 83.33%
        5002.3 Engineering  5% project/escrow 42,980.25 0.00 56,742.06 68,090.00 83.33%
        5002.35 Town Engineering 56,604.13 0.00 90,909.34 109,091.00 83.33%
        5002.36 Town Engineering - projects 30,380.00 0.00 27,347.20 32,817.00 83.33%
        5002.4 Building inspection 176,055.55 0.00 102,891.53 145,763.00 70.59%
        5002.5 Plan prints 7,263.88 0.00 609.00 863.00 70.57%
        5002.6 Auditor 6,940.00 0.00 11,100.00 18,600.00 59.68%
        5002.60 Planning 59,840.00 0.00 43,750.00 52,500.00 83.33%
        5002.65 Building Plan Review 15,012.50 0.00 (17,856.00) (17,856.00) 100.00%
      Total Professional services 749,670.61 15,225.00 471,737.02 597,361.00 78.97%

    Total General government 1,304,312.56 28,065.51 1,066,857.12 1,166,582.00 91.45%

    Public Safety
      5105 Safety Police department 77,501.94 0.00 66,770.00 80,124.00 83.33%
      5305 Animal Services 11,996.47 727.25 8,854.89 11,807.00 75.00%
    Total Public Safety 89,498.41 727.25 75,624.89 91,931.00 82.26%

    Streets
      5201 Streets Personnel 425.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
      5202 Streets Auto maintenance 2,784.43 0.00 27,670.83 30,186.00 91.67%
      5203 Streets Benefits 8,685.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
      5204 Streets Fuel 13,496.31 0.00 8,904.63 9,714.00 91.67%
      5205 Streets Materials & Supplies 102,985.66 0.00 65,512.26 78,615.00 83.33%
      5207 City Road Repairs 0.00 0.00 322,110.34 322,110.00 100.00%
      5208 Streets Repair & maintenance 63,582.30 0.00 47,335.41 51,639.00 91.67%
      5209 Streets Equipment lease 30,750.00 0.00 8,062.50 10,750.00 75.00%
      5215 Streets Utilities 572.32 0.00 824.17 989.00 83.33%
    Total Streets 223,281.87 0.00 480,420.14 504,003.00 95.32%

    Parks
      5450 Parks and Recreation 5,834.34 0.00 2,310.00 2,310.00 100.00%
    Total Parks 5,834.34 0.00 2,310.00 2,310.00 100.00%

    Miscellaneous
      5650 Community Development 4,960.05 0.00 5,046.84 10,047.00 50.23%
      5660 Fire Station Expenses 0.00 0.00 95,206.03 0.00 0.00%
    Total Miscellaneous 4,960.05 0.00 100,252.87 10,047.00 997.84%

    Debt service
      5800 Principal 19,552.24 0.00 26,220.94 26,221.00 100.00%
      5801 Interest 10,458.24 0.00 12,467.97 12,468.00 100.00%
      5802 penalities and fines 14,521.93 0.00 156.58 235.00 66.63%
    Total Debt service 44,532.41 0.00 38,845.49 38,924.00 99.80%

  Total Expenditures: 1,672,419.64 28,792.76 1,764,310.51 1,813,797.00 97.27%

Total Change In Net Position (313,039.08) (28,786.76) (310,706.27) (118,873.00) 261.38%

Prior YTD
Current 
Period Current YTD

Annual 
Budget Percent Used



Town of Hideout
Operational Budget Report

23 Municipal Services - MIDA - 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2024
100.00% of the fiscal year has expired

INTENDED FOR MANAGEMENT USE ONLY Page 3 6/3/2024 06:11 PM

Change In Net Position
  Revenue:
    Taxes
      3110 Property taxes - Current MIDA 20,520.14 0.00 0.00 51,138.00 0.00%
      3140 Energy  - Current MIDA 12,645.91 0.00 0.00 15,525.00 0.00%
      3145 Transient Room tax  - Current MIDA 524.41 0.00 0.00 240.00 0.00%
    Total Taxes 33,690.46 0.00 0.00 66,903.00 0.00%

    Interest
      3610 Interest earnings 0.00 0.00 1,874.00 1,874.00 100.00%
    Total Interest 0.00 0.00 1,874.00 1,874.00 100.00%

  Total Revenue: 33,690.46 0.00 1,874.00 68,777.00 2.72%

  Expenditures:
    General government
      Administrative
        4700 MIDA-Admin 1,317.03 0.00 0.00 1,389.00 0.00%
      Total Administrative 1,317.03 0.00 0.00 1,389.00 0.00%

    Total General government 1,317.03 0.00 0.00 1,389.00 0.00%

  Total Expenditures: 1,317.03 0.00 0.00 1,389.00 0.00%

Total Change In Net Position 32,373.43 0.00 1,874.00 67,388.00 2.78%

Prior YTD
Current 
Period Current YTD

Annual 
Budget Percent Used



Town of Hideout
Operational Budget Report

24 Development- MIDA - 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2024
100.00% of the fiscal year has expired

INTENDED FOR MANAGEMENT USE ONLY Page 4 6/3/2024 06:11 PM

Change In Net Position
  Revenue:
    Taxes
      3110 Property taxes - Current MIDA 100,431.34 0.00 0.00 250,277.00 0.00%
      3130 MIDA - Sales tax 24,850.71 0.00 0.00 37,407.00 0.00%
    Total Taxes 125,282.05 0.00 0.00 287,684.00 0.00%

    Interest
      3610 Interest earnings 0.00 0.00 6,554.00 6,554.00 100.00%
    Total Interest 0.00 0.00 6,554.00 6,554.00 100.00%

  Total Revenue: 125,282.05 0.00 6,554.00 294,238.00 2.23%

  Expenditures:
    General government
      Administrative
        4000 Parks 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
        4700 MIDA - admin 2,485.07 0.00 0.00 1,762.00 0.00%
      Total Administrative 2,485.07 0.00 0.00 16,762.00 0.00%

    Total General government 2,485.07 0.00 0.00 16,762.00 0.00%

  Total Expenditures: 2,485.07 0.00 0.00 16,762.00 0.00%

Total Change In Net Position 122,796.98 0.00 6,554.00 277,476.00 2.36%

Prior YTD
Current 
Period Current YTD

Annual 
Budget Percent Used



Town of Hideout
Operational Budget Report

48 Class C Road Fund - 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2024
100.00% of the fiscal year has expired

INTENDED FOR MANAGEMENT USE ONLY Page 5 6/3/2024 06:11 PM

Change In Net Position
  Revenue:
    Intergovernmental revenue
      3356 Class C road allotment 62,860.32 0.00 (29,484.11) 160,800.00 -18.34%
    Total Intergovernmental revenue 62,860.32 0.00 (29,484.11) 160,800.00 -18.34%

    Interest
      3610 Interest earnings 0.00 0.00 7,751.00 4,351.00 178.14%
    Total Interest 0.00 0.00 7,751.00 4,351.00 178.14%

  Total Revenue: 62,860.32 0.00 (21,733.11) 165,151.00 -13.16%

Total Change In Net Position 62,860.32 0.00 (21,733.11) 165,151.00 -13.16%

Income or Expense
  Income From Operations:
    Operating expense
      6010 Transfers to General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 189,843.00 0.00%
    Total Operating expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 189,843.00 0.00%

  Total Income From Operations: 0.00 0.00 0.00 189,843.00 0.00%

Total Income or Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 189,843.00 0.00%

Prior YTD
Current 
Period Current YTD

Annual 
Budget Percent Used



Town of Hideout
Operational Budget Report

51 Water Fund - 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2024
100.00% of the fiscal year has expired

INTENDED FOR MANAGEMENT USE ONLY Page 6 6/3/2024 06:11 PM

Income or Expense
  Income From Operations:
    Operating income
      5110 Interest earnings 0.00 0.00 19,211.00 28,657.00 67.04%
      5140 Water service 927,081.46 0.00 823,143.77 987,773.00 83.33%
      5141 Standby water 271,535.50 0.00 202,208.66 207,209.00 97.59%
      5142 Water reservation fee (1,108.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
      5143 Meter rental 1,350.00 0.00 2,750.00 3,300.00 83.33%
      5145 Storm water service 34,092.96 0.00 38,070.08 45,684.00 83.33%
      5150 Sewer service 223,106.83 0.00 209,733.51 251,680.00 83.33%
      5310 Connection fees 78,683.00 0.00 81,068.25 97,282.00 83.33%
      5315 Water Transfer fees 2,259.70 0.00 2,374.00 2,849.00 83.33%
      5410 Late penalties and fees 10,639.80 0.00 21,849.88 26,220.00 83.33%
      5490 Other operating income 355.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
    Total Operating income 1,547,996.25 0.00 1,400,409.15 1,650,654.00 84.84%

    Operating expense
      5001.1 Admin Contract Services 4,280.00 0.00 0.00 903.00 0.00%
      5001.2 Admin Council Pay 328.00 0.00 0.00 69.00 0.00%
      5001.4 Admin Insurance 7,815.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
      5001.6 Admin Mileage Reimbursement 2,112.00 0.00 0.00 1,446.00 0.00%
      5001.7 Admin Office Supplies 3,489.00 0.00 0.00 736.00 0.00%
      5001.9 Admin Public Notices 900.00 0.00 0.00 190.00 0.00%
      5001.A Admin Security Alarm Monitoring 973.00 0.00 0.00 205.00 0.00%
      5004 Admin Other 405.00 0.00 0.00 85.00 0.00%
      5019 Admin Membership 6,623.00 0.00 735.00 1,250.00 58.80%
      5030 Admin Repairs & Maintenance 5,556.00 0.00 0.00 1,172.00 0.00%
      5050 Admin Utilites 10,141.00 0.00 0.00 2,140.00 0.00%
      5069 Miscellaneous 3,750.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
      5080 Interest Expense 368.05 0.00 277.77 370.00 75.07%
      6001.1 Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,649.00 0.00%
      6005 Accounting and Audit 24,752.56 0.00 34,945.97 45,941.00 76.07%
      6006 Consulting Services - PW 0.00 0.00 0.00 52,000.00 0.00%
      6010 Information Technology 15,591.00 0.00 1,000.00 7,709.00 12.97%
      6016 Telephone 4,821.00 0.00 0.00 1,017.00 0.00%
      6017 Training 8,102.00 0.00 1,349.00 2,040.00 66.13%
      6018 Website 465.00 0.00 0.00 298.00 0.00%
      6120 Depreciation Expense 220,264.00 2,425.00 239,642.00 239,642.00 100.00%
      6140 Engineering 51,353.75 0.00 12,171.25 14,606.00 83.33%
      6141 Engineering - projects 2,396.00 0.00 (2,382.17) (2,382.00) 100.01%
      6150 Legal 39,966.43 0.00 36,704.75 40,375.00 90.91%
      6205 materials and supplies 21,468.70 0.00 9,229.88 10,069.00 91.67%
      6209 Street Equipment Lease 0.00 0.00 24,187.50 0.00 0.00%
      6210 Meters 51,069.74 0.00 52,611.46 68,394.00 76.92%
      6241 Contract Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,250.00 0.00%
      6250 Operating expenses 1,337.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
      6305 Repairs and Maint - Sewer 1,069.00 0.00 7,446.37 8,123.00 91.67%
      6310 Repairs and Maint - Water 2,136.11 0.00 5,535.87 6,039.00 91.67%
      6350 Salaries and wages 365,357.44 16,413.60 422,040.85 460,408.00 91.67%
      6355 Benefits 90,631.82 3,837.50 155,892.26 170,064.00 91.67%
      6360 Software and technology 2,644.80 0.00 7,694.80 0.00 0.00%
      6405 JSSD - Sewer 48,379.61 4,388.71 46,479.63 50,509.00 92.02%
      6410 JSSD - Water 277,038.71 23,062.50 251,472.94 274,093.00 91.75%
      6412 Water reservation fees 56,364.53 0.00 58,037.43 58,037.00 100.00%
    Total Operating expense 1,331,949.97 50,127.31 1,365,072.56 1,549,447.00 88.10%

  Total Income From Operations: 216,046.28 (50,127.31) 35,336.59 101,207.00 34.92%

  Non-Operating Items:
    Non-operating income
      7000 Gain/Loss on Disposal of Assets 0.00 0.00 (41,247.00) (10,000.00) 412.47%
    Total Non-operating income 0.00 0.00 (41,247.00) (10,000.00) 412.47%

  Total Non-Operating Items: 0.00 0.00 (41,247.00) (10,000.00) 412.47%

Total Income or Expense 216,046.28 (50,127.31) (5,910.41) 91,207.00 -6.48%

Prior YTD
Current 
Period Current YTD

Annual 
Budget Percent Used




